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MA Crabel Limited

AIFM
AIFM AIFM
4,166 0.04 12
AIFM
AIFM
1.25 12
365
366
MA ADG Limited
AIFM
AIFM AIFM
4,166 0.04 12
AIFM
AIFM
1.25
12
365 366

20
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NAV

MA Niederhoffer Smart Alpha Limited

AIFM
AIFM
4,166
AIFM
AIFM

12

365

18

NAV

NAV

NAV
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50
US IGA 100
CRS US IGA AEOI
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2021
63,253,851 100.36
224,036 0.36
63,029,815
100.00
( 7,054 )
2021
SIGNUM MILLENIA 11
LIMITED 0.565 | 2025/ /26 51,554,500 50,288,012 51,997,869 82.50
/VARIABLE/REGDEMTN
SIGNUM MILLENIA 11
LIMITED 0.00 |2025/ /26 15,320,470 9,146,540 11,255,982 17.86
/VARIABLE/REGDEMTN/AUD/

2021

2021
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2021
2020 78,046,734 8,735 10.19 1,140
2021 56,729,879 6,349 10.25 1,147
2020 10 71,912,398 8,048 10.31 1,154
11 69,359,558 7,763 10.38 1,162
12 67,628,340 7,569 10.42 1,166
2021 65,328,520 7,312 10.31 1,154
62,312,904 6,974 10.24 1,146
60,369,400 6,757 10.19 1,140
57,547,294 6,441 10.22 1,144
56,729,879 6,349 10.25 1,147
56,036,287 6,272 10.21 1,143
55,762,410 6,241 10.22 1,144
54,140,018 6,059 10.20 1,142
51,803,047 5,798 10.06 1,126

31
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28,945,743 2,329 10.32 830
2020
16,534,876 1,330 10.34 832
2021
2020 10 22,008,020 1,771 10.51 846
11 21,130,230 1,700 10.52 846
12 20,848,679 1,677 10.53 847
2021 20,668,598 1,663 10.46 842
19,626,723 1,579 10.38 835
17,647,695 1,420 10.32 830
17,550,107 1,412 10.34 832
16,534,876 1,330 10.34 832
16,316,734 1,313 10.30 829
16,248,292 1,307 10.32 830
15,842,036 1,275 10.29 828
15,542,007 1,251 10.14 816
)
1.90
0.59
)
3.20
0.19
100x
10.00

10.00
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7,758,196.266 101,300.000 7,656,896.266
7,758,196.266 101,300.000 7,656,896.266
0.000 2,122,861.676 5,534,034.590
0.000 2,122,861.676 5,534,034.590
2,804,049.901 0.000 2,804,049.901
2,804,049.901 0.000 2,804,049.901
0.000 1,204,359.510 1,599,690.391
0.000 1,204,359.510 1,599,690.391
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23 103

2021 30
111.92

99/246



2021

31

EDINETOOOO

OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)

2020-03

2021 31
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63,531,638 69,615,451
1,320,742

377,381

7,791,361
147,817
42,236

71,313,574

7,981,415

96,167

72,512
45,756
35,928
12,828
7,417
2,956
863

10,763

8,116
5,121
4,021
1,436
830
331
97

274,427

30,714

71,039,147

7,950,701

13,034,101
58,005,046

1,599,690
5,534,035

8.15
10.48
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2020-03
2021 31
463,710 51,898
463,710 51,898
450,899 50,465
208,834 23,373
130,074 14,558
99,386 11,123
60,529 6,774
40,196 4,499
15,609 1,747
12,761 1,428
8,508 952
(1,584) Q)
1,025,212 114,742
(561,502) (62,843)
3,083,409 345,095
4,080 457
3,087,489 345,552
2,198,599 246,067
(1,497) (168)
2,197,102 245,900
5,284,591 591,451

4,723,089 528,608
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2020-03
2021 31
(561,502) (62,843)
3,087,489 345,552
2,197,102 245,900
4,723,089 528,608
(31,209,526) (3,492,970)
(26,486,437) (2,964,362)
97,525,584 10,915,063
71,039,147 7,950,701
(1,204,360) (2,122,862)
(1,204,360) (2,122,862)
(9,287,260) (1,039,430)  (21,922,266) (2,453,540)

(9,287,260) (1,039,430) (21,922,266) (2,453,540)
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2021 31
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4,723,089

30,980,329
(3,083,409)
(2,198,599)

(39,118)
(19,150)
(7,142)
(5.317)
(2,178)
(1,441)
(738)
29,644
30,471

528,608

3,467,318
(345,095)
(246,067)

(4,378)
(2,143)
(799)
(595)
(244)
(161)
(83)
3,318
3,410

30,406,441

3,403,089

(31,209,526)

(3,492,970)

(31,209, 526)

(3,492,970)

(803,085)

(89,881)

2,405,041

269,172

1,601,956

179,291

1,320,742
377,381
(96,167)

147,817
42,236
(10,763)

1,601,956

179,291
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2020-03
31
6.87 769 10.22 1,144
(0.05) Q) (0.07) ®
1.33 149 0.33 37
1.28 143 0.26 29
8.15 912 10.48 1,173
18.59 2.54
1.18 1.21
(0.64) (0.66)
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2020-03

2021 31

2020-03

2019 2020 31

10 EQ

2021

100

GAAP

GAAP

FASB
ASC 946
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FASB ASC 820
GAAP
2021 31
2021
31
$ $ $ 69,615,451 $ 69,615,451
2021 31

$ 27,896,920 $ $

$ 27,896,920 $ $
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NAV
JGB
GSI
MA ADG Limited MA Crabel
Limited MA GCI Limited MA Niederhoffer Smart Alpha Limited
JGB GSI
2021 31
3.83
2021 31
0.38
2021 31 0.40

107/246



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 31

2021 31
2021 31

2021 31
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2020 11 COVID-19
COVID-19

COVID-19

FASB ASC 740

more likely than not
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2021

0.015

31

31

31

2021

7,500

31

0.01
2021
2021

15,000

90,000
0.09
75,000
2021

2021 31
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4,166
0.04
2021 31
31
31
2021
2021 31
2021
2021 31
125,000
2021 31
31
0.53
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0.01
2021 31
2021 31
2021 11
2021
899,970 6,928,441
NAV
GAAP
NAV
GAAP
GAAP NAV
NAV

2021

NAV 69,477,442

(110,726)

112/246



NAV

113/246

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1,672,431

71,039,147




EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020-03
2021 31

98.0

98.0
15,997,080 Signum Millenia 11, Ltd. 0.54% due 3/26/25 12,769,535
55,340,650 Signum Millenia Il Ltd.  0.00% due 3/26/25 56,845,916
63,531,638 69,615,451
63,531,638 69,615,451
63,531,638 69,615,451
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 202{0-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Assets and Liabilities

May 31, 2021

(Expressed in United Stewtes Dollars)

Assets

Irmvestrments, at far value {cost $63 531,638) § 69,615,451

Cash 1,320,742

Cash denominated in foreign cumencias 377 381
Total assets 71313574

Liabilities

Due bo custodian a6 167

Payables for
Frofessional fees 72512
Distnbutor fees 45,756
Printing fees 35928
Managamaent faes 12,828
Accounting and admimistralve foes 7417
Custody leas 2,958
Agent company feas 63
Total liabilities 274 427

Met assets 3 71,0039 147

Met assets

Class AD % 13 034 11

Class USD 58,005,048

Units outstanding

Class ALUD 1,593 530

Class USD 5534 035

Net asset value perunit
Class AUD $ 815
Class USD 1048

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
3
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 202{0-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Operations

For the year ended May 31, 2021

{(Expressed in United Stewtes Dollars)

Investment income

Fberest income b 463 710
Tetal investment income 463 710
Expenses
Distnbutor fees 450 599
Organization expense 208 834
Management jees 130,074
Professional fees 4 356
Accourting and administratene feas B0 529
Panting fass 40,196
Trusies fass 15 6049
Custody fees 12 761
Agent company feas 5,508
Other fees {15840
Total expenses 1.035.212
Met investment loss {561,502

REALIZED AMD UMREALIZED GAINALOSS) FROM INVESTMENTS AND
FOREIGH CURREMNCY:
Realized gain/{loss) on:

invesiments in securities 3,083 409

Foreign cumency transactions 4 0&0

Met realized gain & 05T 480
Met change in unrealized appreciationd{depreciation) from:

Ivastments in securnties 2,198 5049

Foraign cumency transactions {1,447}

Met change in unrealized appreciation 2197 102
Met galn from investments and forelgn currency 5 234 501
Met increase in net assets resulting from operations $ 4 723 089

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
q
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 202{0-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended May 31, 2021

{Expressed in United Stewtes Dollars)

Met increasef{decrease) in net assets resulting from cperations:

Met invastment loss ] (561,502)
Med realized gain 1087 480
Met change in unrealzed appreciabon 2,197 102
Met increase in net assets resulting from operations 4,723 059
Mat decraase in net assets resulting from fund unit transacions {31,209 526)
Meat decregse innat assels (36 486 437
Met assets
Baginning of year 97 525 584
End of year $ 71039147

Transactions in units for the yvear ended May 31, 2021 are a5 follows

Class AUD Class UsSD
Fund unit transactions
Units repurchased {1,204 350) {2,122 8632)
Units, end of year {1,204 350) (2122 B6J)
Amounts mpurchesed E {9 257 360) § {21,922 266)
Amounts, end of year {3 287 280) § {21,523 266}

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
[
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 202{0-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended May 31, 2021

{Expressed in United Stewtes Dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Met increase in net assels resulling from operations 4,723,069
Adjustmants to reconcile the net increase in net assets resulting from
operalions o net cash provided by operating activities

Procaads from sale of imvéstments a0 Ga0.329

Raalized gans on imvestments ;M secunbies (3,083 409)

Change in unrealized appreciation on ivestmants in secunties (2,198 539)
Changes in pavables for

Custributor feas {39,118}

Other liabilities {19,150)

Custody faas {7,142}

Management feas (2.317)

Trustes faes {2,178)

Accounting and adminisirative feas (1441)

Agent company feas (T3&)

Professional fees 25 544

Prirting feas in4aT
Net cash provided by operating actoities 20406441
Cash flows from financing activities:

Payments on repurchase of units (31,208 526
Mel cash used m financing activities (31,2083, 526)
et decrease in cash and cash equevalents {03 085)
Cash and cash equivalents - Baginning of year 2,405,041
Cash and cash equivalents - End of year 1,801,958
At May 31, 2021 the amounts included in cash and cash equivalents
Inelude the fallowing:

Cazh 1,320,742

Caszh denominated in foreign currencies 377,381

D to custodian (45 167
Cash and cash equivalents - End of year 1,601,956

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Financial Highlights
For the year ended May 31, 2021
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{(Expressed in United Stewtes Dollars)

Per-unit aperating performance:

Met asset value, beginning of year

Met investment loss?

MNet gain fFom irvestmeants and foreign currancy
Met increase in nat assels resulling from opecalions
Met asset value, end of year

Total retum?

Ratios to average net assets’;
Ratio of expanses bo avarage net assats

Ratio of nat investment loss to average net assels

' Calodated based on average units outstanding during the year

Class ALID Class USD

$ 687 § 10,22

{0.05) {0.0T)

1.33 033

1.28 026

$ 8.15 $ 10,48
18 59% 2 54%
1.18% 121%
10 B4 )% {0 BB

! Unaholter's return and rabos may vary from the return and rabios presanted due to the brreeg aof capital transachons

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

8
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 202{0-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2021

1. ORGANIZATION

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03 (the “Series Trust") is a series trust of Ortu Curva Trost (the “Trust™),
which is an open-ended unit umbrella trust established in the Cayman Islands. The Trust was established by a
Master Trust Deed dated August 6, 2019, and commenced operations on March 31, 2020,

Pursuant to the Master Trust Deed, Intertrust SPV (Cavman) Limited and 1) EQ Management Bermuda Limited, act
as Trustee and Manager to the Trust respectively.

The Trust is registered as a mutual fund under the Mutual Funds Act (2021 revision) of the Cayman Islands and the
Trust has obtained a tax exemption certificate from the Government of the Cayman Islands.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to pursue capital appreciation, while aiming to achieve a Nel Asset
Value per Unit for the relevant class of Units on the Maturity Date that is not less than 100% of the Issue Price of
such class of Units by investing all of the proceeds from the issue of Units in § Year USD Performance Linked
Motes with Fixed Rate Coupons (the "Notes (USD)"), in the case of the USD Class Units, and 5 Year AUD
Performance Linked Notes with Fixed Rate Coupons (the "Notes (AUD)"), in the case of the AUD Class Units, each
to be issued by Signum Millenia IT Limited (the "Notes Tssuer"),

Brown Brothers Hamiman & Co. has been appointed as both the Series Trust's custodian (the “Custodian™) and
administrator (the *Administrator™). Such duties are handled by separate and independent business units within the
entity.

Capitalized terms not defined here in are defined in the Offering Memorandum and Appendix which should be read
in conjunction with these financial statements,

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Series Trust's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America (“US GAAP™) applicable to financial reporting and are stated in United
States Dollar (“$" or “USD™).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial staterments and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reponting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates,

The Series Trust is an investment company and accordingly follows the investrnent company accounting and
reporting guidance of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASBE™) Accounting Standards Codification
(“ASC") Topic 946 Financial Services — Investment Companies.

The following is a sumsnary of the significant accounting and reporting policies used in preparing the financial
statements.

(A) Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash balances are normally held in accounts with the Custodian. The Series Trust
considers all cash, foreign cash, and short-term deposits with maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase
to be cash and cash equivalents.

(B) Valuation. FASE ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements, defines fair value as the price that would be

received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability (.e., the “exit price™) in an orderly transaction between mark et
participants at the measurement date.
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 202{0-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

In accordance with the authoritative guidance on fair value measurements and disclosures under US GAAP, the
Series Trust discloses the fair value of its investments in a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure the fair value, The hierarchy gives the highest priority to valuations based upon
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measirement) and the lowest
priority to valuations based upon unobservable inputs that are significant to the valuation (Level 3 measurements).
The guidance establishes three levels of the fair value hierarchy as follows:

= Lewel 1 — Fair value measurements derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

= Level 2 = Fair value measurements derived from mputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (ie. as prices) or indirectly (Le. derived

from prices); and

= Level 3 - Fair value measurements derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset
or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs),

The following table presents the financial instruments cammied on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities by caption
and by level within the valuation hierarchy as of May 31, 2021.%

(Unadjusted)
Quoted Prices
in A ctive Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unebservable
Investments Inputs Inputs Fair Value at
fLewel 1) (Lewel 2} {Level 3} May 31, 2021
Parform ance Linked Notes £ — £ B £ EOEIS 451 ¥ B9 EIS451

*  For further information on categories of securities refer to the Schedule of Investment 2

The following is a summary of sales and transfers of the fair valuations using significant unchservable inputs {Level
3) for the Series Trust during the vear ended May 31, 2021, as applicable:

Transfers Inte Transfers out of
Inwestmant in Securities Sales at cost Level 3 Level 3
Perdormance Linked Hotes £ E?E_EG 43 % . 3
Total Investm ents ] JTBOEH  § - $

The Performance Linked Notes are valued by the Calculation Agent at each NAYV date. The USD and AUD Notes
are exposed to a Fixed Portion and an Active Portion and are linked to the USD and AUD classes respectively. The
Frced Portion is structured through currency swap transactions that exchange Japanese Yen (“JPY™) for Japanese
Government Bonds (“JGBs™) and the currency of denomination of the USD Class ar AUD Class of the Series Trust.
The Active Portion aims to generate excess return based on the performance of the Strategy through the call option
transaction between the Notes Tssuer and Goldman Sachs Intemational (*GSI™). On the initial closing date of the
Series Trust the Froed Portion is purchased at a discount to its face value which is the value on maturity and matches
the mitial subscriptions into the Series Trust. The discount is used to provide against the fixed costs over the life of
the Series Trust and to invest in the Active Portion. The Active Portion provides, through the call option transaction,
a notional exposure to four strategies, MA ADG Ltd, MA Crabel Ltd, MA GCT Ltd and MA Niederhoffer Smart
Alpha Ltd. Should the performance of the Active Portion be positive then the Series Trust will, subject to no default
on the part of the Notes Issuer, JGBs, the backed assets or GSI, the counterparty to the currency swap agreement,
rvetumn the full face value of the Fixed Portion plus the value of the Active Portion (the “excess return™ ) Should the
performance of the Active Portion be negative then there will be no excess retum and the Series Trust will receive
the Fixed Portion only at maturity, The Fixed Portion is valied based on yvield with valuation inputs being prevailing
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 202{0-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

interest rates and credit risk assessment. At May 31, 2021 an increase in the yield of 196 would result in a fall in
value of the Fixed Portion of approximately 3.83% The Active Portion is valued based on the sirategy level, which
in tuwrn 15 based on the performance of the underlying Funds, At May 31, 2021 an increase in strategy level of the
USD Motes of 1% would result in an increase in the Note Price of 0.38%0 An increase in strategy level of the AUD
Motes of 1% would result in an ncrease in the MNote Price of 04024,

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation technigques and broadly refer to the assumptions that market
participants use to make waluation decisions, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may include price
information, specific and broad credit data, liquidity statistics, and other factors. A financial instnmment’s level
within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that & significant to the fair value
measurement. However, the determination of what constitutes “observable” requires significant judgment by the
Manager. The Manager considers observable data to be that market data which is readily available, regularly
distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively
involved in the relevant market. The categorization of a financial instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the
pricing transparency of the instrument and does not necessarily correspond to the Manager's perceived risk of that
instrument.

(C) Securities Transactions and Investment Income. Securities transactions are recorded as of the frade date for
financial reporting purposes. Kealized gains and losses from securities sold are recorded on the first-in, first-out cost
basis. Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date. Investment income is recorded net of withholding taxes.

(I} Foreign Currency. The Series Trust’s functional and reporting currency is United States Dollar, which is the
currency of the primary economic environment i which it operates. Therefore, the United States Dollar is
considered as the cumrency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events
and conditions. The fluctuations in the value of currency holdings and other assets and liabilities resulting from
changes in exchange rates are recorded as unrealized foreign currency appreciation and depreciation. Realized gains
or losses and unrealized appreciation or depreciation on iwvestrment securities and income and expenses are
translated on the respective dates of such transactions and the reporting date, respectively. The effects of changes in
foreign currency exchimge rates on investments in securities are not segregated on the Statement of Operations from
the effects of chauges in market prices and values of these securities, but are included with net realized and
unrealized gains or losses,

(E) Due to Custodian. Due to custodian in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities includes amounts related to
foreign currency or cash owed

(F) Offsetting. The Series Trust is required to disclose the impact of offsetting assets and liabilities represented in
the Statement of Assets and Liabilities to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential
effiect of netting arangements on its financial position for recognized assets and liabilities, These recognized assels
and liabilities are financial instruments and derivative instruments that are either subject 1o an enforeeable master
netting amangement or similar agreement or meet the following right of set off criteria: the amounts owed by the
Series Trust to another party are determinable, the Series Trust has the right to set off the amounts owed with the
amounts owed by the other party, the Series Trust intends to set off, and the Series Trust's right of set off is
enforceable at law. As of May 31, 2021, there was no offsetting.

(G) Receivables for Units Subseribed in advance and Payables for Units Repurchased. Receivable for units
subscribed i advance is carried at the issuance amount that is receivable at the Statement of Assets and Liabilities at
May 31, 2021, Payvable for repurchase of units is carried at the repurchase amount that is payable at the Statemment of
Assets and Liabilities at May 31, 2021,
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 202{0-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(H) Due from and due to brokers. Amounts due from and to brokers represent receivables for securities sold and
payables for securities purchased that have been contracted for but not vet settled or delivered on the Statement of
Agsets and Liabilities date respectively. The due from brokers balance is held for collection.

3. UNITS
Ag of May 31, 2021, all of the units issued by the Series Trust were held by one unitholder.

(A) Subscription of Units. Units were available for subseription at the relevant purchase price on each dealing day,
The purchase price per unit calculated by dividing the net asset value as at the valuation point on the Valuation Day
(each day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks and stock exchanges in each of Mew York, London,
Tokyo and Svdney are open for business and/or such other day or days as the Manager, after consultation with the
Trustee, may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust) falling on the relevant dealing day by the
number of units in issue on such Valuation Day, rounded down to three decimal places. The benefit of any such
rounding will be retained by the Series Trust.

All meome, expenses, realized and vnrealized gains and losses of the Series Trust are allocated to the unit classes
based on their respective net assets,

(B) Repurchase of Units. Units may be submitted for repurchase at the option of unitholders as at each Repurchase
Day (each day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks and stock exchanges in each of New York,
London, Tokyo and Sydney are open for business and/or such other day or days as the Manager, after consultation
with the Trustee, may from timme to time determine in respect of the Series Trust),

Unitholders may only submit a repurchase request in respect of settled units, for which pavment has been received in
respect of their mitial purchase. Repurchase requests may be sent by electronic transmission.

(C) Valuation. The net asset value is calculated by the Administrater as at the valuation point on each Valuation
Day (each day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks and stock exchanges in each of New Yok,
London, Tokyo and Sydney are open for business and/or such other day or days as the Manager, after consultation
with the Trustee, may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust) using such pricing service provider
or pricing scurce as the Manager and the Trustee may determine from time to time. The Manager believes that the
methods, principles, significant assumptions used are reasonable, reliable and consistent, have been consistently
applied and result in a measure of fair value that is appropriate for fair value measurement. Such prices will be
treated as conclusive by the Trustee, the Administrator and the Manager and there were no independent verification
of such prices.

The Administrator calculates the net asset value and the net asset value per unit in USD for USD Class and AUD for
AUD Class,

Units are rounded (using natural rounding convention) to the nearest two decimal places, includes fractions of a
Unit.

The Administrator may apply such foreign exchange rates as determined by the Manager in consultation with the
Trustee, as reasonably obtainable on the relevant Valuation Day in order to make any calculations that require the
net asset value be exchanged into or from the relevant currency.

(I3} Distribution Policy. The policy in relation to the Series Trust is not to make distributions to Unitholders,

Consequently, all the Series Trust’s net income and realized capital gains will be reinvested and reflected in the Net
Asset Value.

12
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 202{0-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2021

4. MARKET AND CREDIT RISKS

In the nommal course of business, the Series Trust trades financial instruments and enters into financial trinsactions
where risk of potential loss exists due to changes in the market (market risk) or failure of the other party to the
transactions to perform (eredit risk), Similar to credit risk, the Series Trust may be exposed to counterparty risk, or
the risk that an institution or other entity with which the Series Trust has unseftled or open transactions will default,
The potential loss could exceed the value of the financial assets recorded in the financial staternents. Financial
assets, which potentially expose the Series Trust to credit risk, consist principally of cash due from counterparties,
investments and unrealized gains on derivative contracts,

(A) Absence of Secondary Mar ket

There i& not expected to be any secondary market for the Units. Consequently, it may be the case that Unitholders
will be able to dispose of their Units only by means of repurchase. The risk of any decline in the Met Asset Value
attributable to the Units held by a Unitholder requesting the repurchase of his Units during the period from the date
of the relevant repurchase notice until the relevant repurchase day will be bome by the Unitholder requesting the
repurchaze. In addition, there may be situations in which Unitholders are unable to have their Units repurchased.

(B) No Guarantee

Aninvestment in the Series Trust is neither insured nor guaranteed by any govenment, govemmenl agencies o
instrumentalities or any bank guarantee fund. Units of the Series Trust are not deposits or obhigations of, or
guaranteed or endorsed by, anv bank and the amount invested in Units may fluctuate up and‘or down. Preservation
of principal is not guaranteed. An investment in the Series Trust involves certain investment risks, including the
possible loss of principal. There is no certainty that Unitholders will be able to recover the total value of their initial
investment. Unitholders should be prepared to sustain losses up to the total ameunt invested.

(C) Exchange Rate Risk

The Units are denominated in USD and AUD. This presents certain risks relating o curreney  conversion il an
investor's financial activities are denominated principally in a comrency or cumency unit (ncluding JPY) other than
USD and AUD. These mclude the risk that exchange rates may significantly change (including changes due to
devaluation of USD and AUD or revaluation of the investor’s cumency) and the risk that authorities with jurisdiction
over USD and AUD or the investor's currency, as the case may be, may impose or modify exchange controls.

An increase in the value of the investor's currency against USD and AUD would decrease (a) the investor's currency
equivalent value of the Net Assel Value and Net Asset Value per Unit and (b) the investors currency equivalent
value of the distributions payvable (if amy),

(D) Other Risk

Cm March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavims disease 2009 (“COVID -19) a
pandemic. Uncertainty remains around (i) the length of the disruption, and (i) the impact of the COVID-19 on
global markets. Management note no significant performance issues for the Series Trust as a result of the pandemic.
Management has made an aszessment of the impact of recent market events on the fund's ability to continue as a
going concem and concluded that the going concern assumption remains appropriate,

The Trustee and the Manager are monitoring developments relating to coronavirus and are coordinating their
operational response based on existing business continuity plans and on gwidance from the World Health
Crrganization, relevant govemments, and general pandemic response practices.

5. GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATION

Under the Series Trust's organizational documents, certain parties (including the Trustee and Manager) are
indemnified against certain liabilities that may arise out of performance of their duties to the Series Trust
Additionally, in the normal course of business, the Series Trust enters into contracts that contain a variety of
indemnnification clauses. The Series Trust’s maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown as this would

13
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 202{0-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2021

5 GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATION (CONTINUED)

involve future claims that may be made against the Serieg Trust that have not vet occurred. However, the Series
Trust has not had prior claims or losses pursuant to these contracts,

6. INCOME TAX

The Series Trust is subject to the Cayman Islands acts in respect to its tax status, Under cument Cavman Islands acts,
there are no taxes or duty to be levied on profits, income, gains or appreciation, or any tax in the nature of estate
duty or inheritance tax to any property comprised in or any income arising under the Series Trust, or the unitholders
thereof, in respect of any such property or income. Authoritative guidance on accounting for and disclosure of
uncertainty in tax positions (FASB ASC 740), requires the Series Trust Trustee to determine whether a tax position
of the Series Trust is more likely than not o be sustained upon examination, including resolution of amy related
appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position.

For tax positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax amount recognized in the financial statements is
reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate
settlement with the relevant taxing authority, As of May 31, 2021, there was no foreign tax expense and no
outstanding foreign tax payable as disclosed m the Series Trust’s Statement of Operations and Statement of Assets
and Liabilities, respectively.

7. FEES AND EXPENSES

{A) Adminisirator Fees

The Series Trust has administrative agreements with the Administrator, for which the Administrator receives a
minimum menthly fee of US34, 166, The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate
of 0049 per annum of the Net Asset Value,

The fees camed by the Administrator during the vear ended May 31, 2021 and outstanding fees payable to the
Administrator as of May 31, 2021 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets
and Liabilities, respectively.

The Administrator also receives a transfer agent fee of 0.01% per anmum of the MNet Asset Value, accrued on and
calculated as at each Valuation Day and payvable monthly in amrear. The transfer agent fees eamed by the
Administrater during the year ended May 31, 2021 and outstanding transfer agent fees pavable to the Administrator
as of May 31, 2021 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabalities,
respectively.

(B) Custody Fees

The Series Trust has a custody agreement with the Custodian. The Custodian receives out of the assets of the Series
Trust a custodian fee of 0.01 5% per annum of the Net Asset Value, accrued on and calculated as at each Valuation
Day and payable monthly in arrears. The fees eamed by the Custodian during the year ended May 31, 2021 and
outstanding fees payable to the Custodian as of May 31, 2021 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations
and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

(C) Trustes Fees
The Trustee receives a one-off fee of USS7,500 and a fixed annual fee of USS515,000. The fees eamed by the Trustee

during the year ended May 31, 2021 and outstanding fees payable to the Trustee as of May 31, 2021 have been
disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively,
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2021

7. FEES AND EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

(D) Management Fees

The Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a one-off fee of USS90,000 on the Initial Closing Date, a
fee at the rate of 0.09% per annum of the Fee Amount, subject to a minimum fee of TUS$125,000 per annum, accried
on and caleulated as at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrears, and a one-off fee of USS75,000 upon the
termination of the Series Trust, The fees camed by the Manager during the vear ended May 31, 2021 and
outstanding fees payable to the Manager as of May 31, 2021 have been disclosed n the Staterment of Operations and
the Statement of Ass=ets and Liabilities, respectively.

{E) Distributor Fees

The Distributor will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee of 0.53% per annum of the Fee
Amount of each class of Units, calculated and acerued daily and payable monthly in arrears. The fees eamed by the
Distributor during the vear ended May 31, 2021 and outstanding fees payable to the Distributor as of May 31, 2021
have been dizsclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

(F) Agent Company Fees

The Agent Company will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee of 0,01% per annum of the
Fee Amomt of each elass of Units, caleulated and acerued daily and payable monthly in arrears. The fees eamed by
the Agent during the vear ended Mav 31, 2021 and outstanding fees payable to the Agent Company as of May 31,
2021 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

(G} Other Fees

The Series Trust may bear other expenses related to its operations including but not limited to: governmental fees;
brokerage fees and commissions and other portfolio transaction expenses; costs of borrowing money, including
interest expenses; extraordinary expenses, including costs of litigation and indemnification expenses; and audit fees,
8 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Manager is respoensible under the Master Trust Deed for the management of the investment and re-investment of

the assets of the Series Trust, the exercise of the power to borrow money in respect of the Series Trust and for the
izsue and repurchase of units of the Series Trust.

The Trustee is responsib le under the master trust deed for the administration of each Series Trust and for keeping the
register of unitholders,

The Manager and the Trustee are entitled to receive fees and expenses out of the assets of the Series Trust. Details of
these fiees are set out in MNote 7 to the financial statements,

2. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Trustee and Manager have evaluated all subsequent transactions and events through NMovember 1, 2021, the date
on which these financial statements were available to be 1ssued.

From June 1, 2021 through to the date of this report. there were no subscriptions, and there were redemptions of
USD 899 970 and USD 6,928 441 from Class AUD and Class USD, respectively.

15
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Unaudited Appendix

May 31, 2021

Establishment Costs and On-Going Reserves

As per the Offering Memorandum and Appendic, the Series Trust incwrred an expense reserve inclusive of five
yvears of anticipated expenses in vear | of the Series Trust's operations for the caleulation of the NAV in accordance
with the Offering Memorandum and Appendix. The expense reserve is composed of contractual fees the Fund will
pay over its life, Management recognizes that this is a departure from US GAAP therefore expenses have been
adjusted through the Statement of Operations in the curent period to reflect only these costs attributable to the
current period in these financial staternents,

The Series Trust incurred organizational and set up costs. For the calculation of the NAV in accordance with the
Offering Memorandum and Appendix these costs are amortized by the Series Trust over the first three accounting
periods of its life. Amortization of such expenses over this time period is a divergence from US GAAP. and is
therefore for these financial statements the amounts have been expensed through the Statement of Operations in full.

A reconciliation for the difference between the net asset value of the Series Trust as per the financial statements
(“F§ NAV™T), which is calculated in accordance with US GAAP, and the NAV calculated in accordance with the
Offering Memorandum and Appendix (the “Trading NAV™) is shown below.

2021
Trading NAY 62477442
Organizational expenses (110,726)
Expense reserve 1672431
F5 NAV 71,039,147

16
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 202{0-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments

May 31, 2021
(Expressed in United Stetes Dollars)
Principal Zbof Net
Amount  Security Description Assets Fair Value
PERFORMAMCE LINKED MOTES 86.0%
CAYMAN ISLANDS 98.0%
Signurn Millenia Il Lid
AUD 15897080 0 54% due 326775 £ 12,769,535
Sagnum Millgria Il Lid
=0 55340630  000% due I2ETS 56,845 915
TOTAL CAYMAN ISLANDS (Cost $63,531638) 5 BH615 451
TOTAL PERFORMAMCE LINKED MOTES (Cest $53 531639) $ B5E15.451
TOTAL INVESTMENTS (Cost $563 531 638) % &6 615451
Glessary:

AUD Austrahan Dollar
USD US Dallar

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
4
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2020 31

2020-03
2020 31
91,428,558 95,313,772 10,667,517
1,883,253 210,774
521,893 58,410
97,718,918 10,936,701
105 12
84,874 9,499
42,868 4,798
18,145 2,031
10,098 1,130
8,858 991
5,457 611
2,178 244
1,601 179
19,150 2,143
193,334 21,638
97,525,584 10,915,063
19,266,468 2,156,303
78,259,116 8,758,760
2,804,050
7,656,896
6.87 769

10.22 1,144
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2020-03
2020 31 2020 31
89,923 10,064
89,923 10,064
84,874 9,499
42,912 4,803
19,150 2,143
18,145 2,031
10,098 1,130
8,858 991
5,512 617
2,178 244
1,601 179
193,328 21,637
(103,405) (11,573)
18,537 2,075
7,052 789
25,589 2,864
3,885,214 434,833
3,280 367
3,888,494 435,200
3,914,083 438,064

3,810,678 426,491
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2020-03
31 2020 31
(103,405) (11,573)
25,589 2,864
3,888,494 435,200
3,810,678 426,491
93,714,906 10,488,572
97,525,584 10,915,063
97,525,584 10,915,063
2,804,050 7,758,196
(101,300)
2,804,050 7,656,896
17,162,186 1,920,792 77,581,963 8,682,973
(1,029,243) (115,193)
17,162,186 1,920,792 76,552,720 8,567,780
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31 2020 31
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3,810,678

(92,416,672)
1,006,651

(18,537)

(3,885,214)

84,874
42,868
18,145
10,098
8,858
5,457
2,178
1,601
19,150

426,491

(10,343,274)
112,664

(2,075)

(434,833)

9,499
4,798
2,031
1,130
991
611
244
179
2,143

(91,309, 865)

(10,219,400)

94,744,149
(1,029,243)

10,603,765
(115,193)

93,714,906

10,488,572

2,405,041

269,172

2,405,041

269,172

1,883,253
521,893
(105)

210,774
58,410

12

2,405,041

269,172
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2020-03
2020 31 2020 31
6.12 685 10.00 1,119
(0.01) (€H) (0.01) (€H)
0.76 85 0.23 26
0.75 84 0.22 25
6.87 769 10.22 1,144
N2
12.25 2.20
2
8 0.48 0.54
8 0.10 0.04
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2020-03

2020 31

2020-03

2019 2020 31

10 EQ

2019

100

GAAP

GAAP

FASB
ASC 946
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FASB ASC 820
GAAP
2020 31
2020
31
$ $ $ 95,313,772  $ 95,313,772
2020 31

$ 92,416,672 $ $

$ 92,416,672 $ $
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NAV

2020 31 4.83

2020 31 0.38

2020 31
0.40
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2020 31
2020 31

2020 31
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COVID-19

CovID-19
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FASB ASC 740

2020 31

31

0.01
2020
2020
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more likely than not

50

4,166
0.04

2020 31

31
31

2020
2020 31



31

GAAP

GAAP

7,500

GAAP

0.09
75,0

2020
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15,000 2020
2020 31
90,000 125,000
00 2020 31
2020 31
0.53
2020 31
31
0.01

2020 31

2020 31
NAV
NAV
NAV
NAV
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NAV 97,260,916
264,668
NAV 97,525,584
2020 11
2020
5,344,180 7,297,402
2020 11 COVID-19
COVID-19
CovID-19

COVID-19
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May 31, 2020

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Assets

Imvestments, al fair value (cost 391,428 558) 85313772

Cash 1.883,253

Cash denominated in foregn curmences £21,883
Total assats o97,718.918

Liabliities

Dua o custodian 105

Payabies for
Distributor fecs 84,874
Professional fees 42 BER
Maragament fees 18,145
Custody fees 10,088
Accounting and adminstreive lees 8,658
Printing feas 5457
Trisstes fees 2178
Agent company fees 1,601
Cither Rabilities 15,150
Total liabilities 163,334

MNet assets 97 525 584

Met assets

Class AUD 19,266,468

Claes USD 78,258,116

Units outstanding

Class AUD 2,804,050

Class USD 7656 296

Net asset value poer unit

Class ALUD B.&T

Class USD 10,22

The accompanying notes are an integrel pert of these financiel statements.
3
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Operations

For the period from March 31, 2020 (commencement of operations) to May 31, 2020
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Invastmant Income
Interest income 5 839,523
Total investment Income B9 523
Expenses
Diswibuter fees B4,874
Professional fecs 42912
Other fees 15,150
Managameant fees 18,145
Custody fees 10,088
Accounting and administrative fees &858
Printing fees 5912
Tnstes fees 2,178
Agent company faas 1,601
Total expenses 193,328
Met investment loss (103,405)

REALIZED AMND UNREALIFED GAIN (LOSS):
Realized gain (los5) on:

Investmants in sacufifas 18,637

Feoreign currency transacions 7,052

Mat realized galn 25 589
Met change in unrealizad appreciation (depreciation) from:

Investments in securities 3,885,214

Foreign currency transacions 3,220

Met change in unrealized appreciation 3,888,452
Het gain from Iinvestments and foreign currency 3614083
Mat increase In nat assats resulting from operations g 3.810.676

The secompanying notes are an integral pert of these financial stalements.
3
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

{An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the period from March 31, 2020 (commencement of operations) to May 31, 2020
fExpressed in United States Dollars)

Mot increase (decraass) in not azsots resulting from operations:

Mat immestmant loss 3 {103,405)
Nat reafized gain 25,588
MWet change in unrealized apprecation 3 RAE 404
Mat increase in net assets resulting from cperations 3,810,678
et increasa in net assats resulting from fund unit transactions 93,714,908
Mt incressse in net assobs 97,525,584
Net assets
Beginning of pericd =
End of pariod 5 97,525,584

Transactions in units for the peniod ended May 31, 2020 are as follows:

Clage ALD Class USD

Fund unit transactions
Units

lssued 2,804,050 7,768,186

Repurchased - {101 300)
Units, and of period 2,804,050 7,655 895
Amounts

Issued 3 17,162,186 3 7,581,963

Rapurchassd - {1,029, 243)
Amounts, end of period £ 17,162,186 & 76,552,720

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
&
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03
A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust
(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Cash Flows
For the period from March 31, 2020 (commencement of operations) to May 31, 2020
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Met increasa in net assets resulting from operations 3 3,810,678

Adjustments to reconcile the net increase in net assets resulting from
operations to net cash used in oparating acthities:

Furchase of invesiments (92418 672)
Proceeds from sale of investments 1,006,651
Realized gain on invesiments in secunties (18.537)
Change in unrealized appreciation on investmeants in securities (3,BB5,214)
Changes in payables for;
Disdribwibor foes B4 874
Professional fees 42 B53
Managament fees 18,145
Custody fees 10,058
Accounting end administrative fkes 8,858
Printing fees 557
Trustes feos 2178
Agent company fass 1601
Other liabilitias 18,150
Mat cash used in oparating activities {31,309,385)
Cash Mows from financing activities:
Procesds from issuance of unils 94,744, 125
Payments on repurchase of wnits (1,029,243}
Met cash providad by financing activites 95,714,908
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,405,041

Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of pericd s
Cash and cash aquivalents - End of paricd 5 2,405,041

At May 31, 2020 the amounts included in cash and cash equivalants
include the following:

Cash 5 1,683,253
Gash denominaled in foreign cumencies 521,883
Due to custodian [105)
Cash and cash equivalents - End of penod 5 2,405,041

‘I'he accompanyving notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
7
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Financial Highlights

For the period from March 31, 2020 (commencement of operations) to May 31, 2020
(Expressed in United States Dollors)

Par-unit sperating performance:

Class AUD Class USD
Nel asset value, beginning of period 5 612 $ 10.00
Met investment loss! {0.01) (0.01)
MNet gain from imestments and foreign curmency 0.78 0.23
Net increase in net assets resuling from operations 0.75 [ -]
Met asset value, end of pariod s E.B7 3 0.2
Total ratum*? 12.25% 2200
Ratios to average net assets™:
Ratio of expenses to average net assels’ 0.48% 0.54%
Featio of net investmant income 1o averags net assals® 0.10% 0.04%:

Cilculiatod bascd on averga unils eulsiandng durmg tha pedod,
Mot annuslized for penied of lsss than one year,

Unéthelder's retum and mios mmy wary from the metum and ratios presonted dise to S Bming of capllal ransaclions.
The ratios, saduding noniecurmng expenses such as profossional and other feas, have besn annhasized.

Ny -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thess financial statements.
]
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2020

L. ORGANIZATION

‘Tarpet Setting at Mamurity Fund 2020-03 (the “Series Trust”™) is a series trust of Oru Curva Trust (the “Trust”),
which is an open-ended unit umbrella tust cstzblished in the Caymen Islands. The Trust was established by a
Master Trust Deed dated August 6, 2019, and commenced aperations on March 31, 2020,

Pursuant to the Master Trust Desd, Intertrust SVP (Ceymen) Limited and IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited, act
s Trustee and Manager to the Trust respectively.

The Trust is registered as a mutual fund under the Mutual Funds Law (2019 revision) of the Cayman Islands and the
Trust has oblained a tax exemption certificate from the Government of the Cayman Islands.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is 1o pursue cupital eppreciation, while aiming to achizve a Net Asset
Value per Unit for the relevant class of Units on the Maturity Date that is not less than 100% of the Issue Price of
such class of Units by investing all of the procesds from the issue of Unite in § Year USD Performance Linked
Motes with Fixed Rate Coupons (the "Notes (USD)"), in the case of the USD Class Units, and 5 Year AUD
Performance Linked Notes with Fixed Rate Coupons (the "Motes (AUD)"), in the case of the AUD Class Units, each
to be issued by Signum Millenia IT Limited (the "Motes Issuer”).

Brown Brothers [larriman & Co. has been appointed as both the Series Trust's custodian (the “Custodian™) and
administrator (the “Administrator”™). Such duties are handled by separate and indcpendent business unils within the
entity.

Capitalised terms not defined here in are defined in the Offering Memorandum and Appendix which should be read
in conjunction with these financial statements.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Series Trust's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepled accounting
principles in the United States of America (*US GAAP”) applicable to financial reporting and are stated in United
States Dollar (5" or “TISD™).

The preperation of fnancial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumnptions that affect the reported amounts of asscls and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual resulis could differ from those
cstimates.

The Series Trust is an investment company and accordingly follows the investmenl compuny sccounting and
reporting guidance of the Financial Accouming Standards Board (*FASB") Accounting Standards Codificadon
(“ASC™) Topic 946 Financial Scrvices — Investment Companies.

The following is & summary of the significant acoounting and reporting policies used in preparing the financial
statements.

{A) Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash balances are normally held in accounts with the Custodian. The Series Trust
considers all cash, forcign cash, and short-tenm deposils with maturity of theee months or less at the time of purchase
10 be cash and cash equivalents.

(B) Valuativn. FASE ASC Topic 8§20, Fair Value Meesurements, defines fair value as the price that would be

received to sell an assct or paid to transfer a liability (Le., the “exitl price”™) in an orderdy transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2020

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

In aceordance with the suthoritative guidance on fair valus measurements and disclosures under US GAAP, the
Series Trust discloses the fair valuc of its investments in a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure the fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priorily to veluations based upon
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level | measurement) and the lowest
priority to valuations bascd upon unobservable inputs that are significant to the valuation (Level 3 measurements).
The guidance establishes three levels of the fair value hisrurchy as follows:

= Level 1 — Fair velue measurements derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilitics;

*  Level 2 - Fuir value measurements derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are phservable for the assct or linbility, either directly (Le. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices); and

+  Level 3 = Fair valuc measurcments derived from valustion techniques that include inputs for the asset
or liability that are not based on observable market data (umobservable inputs).

The following twble presents the Gnencial instruments carried on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities by caption
and by level within the valuation hicrarchy as of May 31, 2020.*

[Unadjusted)
Quoted Prices
im Active Significant
Markats for Orther Significant
Idantical Dbsarvabie Unoctsarvable
Investments Inputs Inpuis Falr'Vahoe at
[Level 1] [Loval 7) [Level 3) Bay 31, 2020
Porformance Linked Noles 3 - 5 = 5 8531372 £ B5313 772

* For further information on catsgorics of securities refer (o the Schedule of Invesmments,

The following is a summary of purchases, issuances, and transfers of the fair valustions using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) for the Series Trust during the period ended May 31, 2024, as applicable:

Transters into Transfers out of
v 1 In Socurities Purchasos Lawel 3 Laval 3
Farformancs Linked Notas 3 92416672 3 - i -
Total Invectments 3 92,416,672 5 - $ -

The Performance Linked Notes are valued by the Calculation Agent at each NAV date. The LSD and AUD Motes
are exposed lo a fixed portion and an active portion and are linked to the USD and AUD classes respectively. The
Fixed Portion of the Motes is structured through currency swap ransactions that exchange JPY [or JGBs and the
currency of depomination of the USD Class or AUD Class of the Series Trust. The Active Partion aims to generate
exeess relurn based on the perfocmance of the Strategy through the call option transaction between the Notes [ssuer
and Goldman Sachs International. The Fixcd Portion is velued based on yield with valuation inputs being prevailing
interest rates and credit rick assessment. At May 31, 2020 an increase in the vield of 1% would result in a fall in
value of the Fixed Portion of approximately 4.83%. The Active Portion is valued based on the sirategy level, which
in tum is based on the performence of the Underlying Funds, At May 31, 2020 an increase in strategy level of the
LISD Notes of 1% would result in an increase in the note price of 0.38%. An increase in strategy lovel of the AUD
Wotes of 1% would result in an increase in the note price of 0.40%.

Inputs arc used in applying the various valuation techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions that market
participants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may includs price
information, specific and broad credit data, liguidity statistics, and other factors. A financial instrument's level

10
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2020

2, SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

within the fair value hicrarchy is bussd on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. However, the determination of what constitutcs “observable™ requires significant judgment by the
Manager. The Maneger considers observable data to be that market data which is readily available, regularly
distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively
involved in the relevant market. The cateporization of a financial instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the
pricing trunsparency of the instrument and does not neceszarily correspond to the Manager’s perceived risk of that
Instrument.

{C) Securities Transactions and Investment Income. Securities transactions are recorded as of the trade date for
financial reporting purposes. Realized goins and losses from securities sold are recorded on the first-in, first-out cost
basis. DMvidend income is recorded on the ex-dividend dute. Investment income is recorded net of withholding taxes.

(D) Forcign Currency. The Series Trust's functional and reporting currency is United States Dollur, which is the
currcncy of the primery cconomic environment in which it operates. Therefore, the United States Dollar is
considered as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic cffcets of the underlying transactions, events
and condilions, The fuctuations in the value of currency holdings and other assets and liabilities resulting from
changes in exchangs rates are recorded as unrealized forcign currency eppreciation and depreciation. Realized gains
or losses and unrealized appreciation or depreciation on investment securities und income end expenses are
translated on the respective dates of such transactions and the reporting date, respectively. The cffects of chunges in
foreign currency exchange rates on investments in securities are not segregated on the Statement of Operations from
the effects of changes in markel prices and values of those securities, but are included with net realized and
unrealized gans or losses,

(E) Due to Custodian. Due to custodian in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities includes amounts related fo
forcign currency or cash owed

(F) Offsetting. The Series Trust is required to disclose the impact of offsclting assets and liabilities represented in
the Statement of Assets and Liabilities to enable users of the financial statements to evaluaic the cifect or potental
effect of netting armangements on its financial position for recognized assets and lisbilities. These recognized assets
and liabilities are finencial instrurnents and derivative instruments that are either subject to 2n enforceable master
nelting errungement or similur sgreement or meet the following right of set off criteria: the amounts owed by the
Series ‘Trust to another party arc determinable, the Series Trust has the right to set off the amounts owed with the
amounts owed by the other party, the Series Trust intends to sct off, and the Series Trust's right of set off is
enforceable at law.

(G) Receivables for Unils Subscribed in advance and Pavables for Units Repurchased. Receivable for units
suhscribed in advance is carried at the issuance amount that is receivable at the Statement of Assets and Liabilities at
Maw 31, 2020. Payable for repurchase of units is carried at the repurchase amount that is payablc at the Statement of
Asscis and Liabalities at May 31, 2020,

(H) Due from and due to brokers. Amounts due from and to brokers represent receivables for securities sold and
payables for securities purchased that have been contracted for but not yet sertled or deliversd on the Statement of
Aszets and [iahilities date rezpectively. The due from brokers balunce is held for collection.

3. UNITS

As of May 31, 2020 all of the units issoed by the Series Trust were held by one unitholder.

{A) Subscription of Units, Units were available for subscription at the relevant purchase price on cach dealing day.

The purchase price per unit caleulated by dividing the net asset value as ot the valuation point on the Valuation Day
(cach day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks and stock exchanges in each of New York, London,

11
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2020

3. UNITS (CONTINUED)

Tokyo and Sydney are open [or business andfor such other day or days as the Manager, after consultation with the
Trustee, may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust) falling on the relevant dealing day by the
number of units in issue on such Valuation Day, rounded down to three decimal places. The benefir of any such
rounding will be retained by the Series Trust.

All income, expenses, realized and unrcalized gains and losses of the Series Trust are allocated to the unit classes
based on their respective net assets.

(B} Repurchase of Units. Units may be submitted for repurchase at the option of unitholders as at each Repurchase
Day (each day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks and steck exchanges in each of New York,
London, Tokyo end Sydney are open for business and/or such other day or days as the Manager, afier consultation
with the Trustee, may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust).

Unitholders may only submit a repurchase request in respect of settled units, for which payment has been received in
respect of their initial purchase, Repurchase requests may be sent by electronic transmission.

{C) Valuation. The net asset value is calculated by the Administrator as at the valualion point on each Valuation
Day (each day other than e Saturdsy or a Sunday on which banks and stock exchanges in each of New York,
London, Tokyo and Sydncy arc open for business andfor such other day or days as the Manager, after consultation
with the Trustee, may from time to time determine in respeet of the Series Trusl) using such pricing service provider
or pricing source as the Manager and the Trustee may determine from time to time. The Manager believes that the
methads, principles, significant assumptions used are ressonable, reliable and consistent, have been consistently
applied and result in a measurc of fair value that is appropriste for fair value measurement. Such prices will be
treated as conclusive by the Trustes, the Administrator and the Manager und there were no independent verification
of such prices.

The Administrator calculates the net asset value und the net asset value per unit in USD for USD Class and AUD for
AUD Class.

Linits are rounded (using natural rounding convention) lo the nearest two decimal places, includes fractions of a
Unit.

The Administrator may apply such forcign cxchange rates as delermined by the Manager in consultation with the
Trustee, 25 reasonably obtainable on the relevant Valuation Day in order to make any culculations that reguire the
nct assct value be exchanged into or from the relevant currency.

(D) Distribution Palicy. The policy in relation to the Series Trust is not to make distributions to Unitholders.
Consequently, all the Series Trust's net income and realized capital gains will be reinvested and reflected in the Net
Asset Value,

4. MARKET AND CREDIT RISKS

In the normal course of business, the Series Trust rades financial instruments and enters into financial transactions
where risk of potential loss exists due to changes in the market (market risk) or failure of the other purty W the
transactions to perform (credit risk). Similar to credit risk, the Series Trust may be exposed to counterparty risk, or

the risk that an institution or other entity with which the Series Trust has unsettled or open transactions will default.
The potential loss could excead the value of the financial assets recorded in the finencial statements. Financial
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
MNotes to Financial Statcments

May 31, 2020

4. MARKET AND CREDIT RISKS (CONTINUED)

assets, which potentially expose the Series Trust w credit risk, consist principally of cash due from counterparties,
investments and unrealized gains on derivative contracts.

(A) Absenee of Secondary Market

There is not cxpected to be eny sccondery market for the Units. Consequently, it may be the case that Unitholders
will be able to dispose of their Units anly by means of repurchase. The risk of any decline in the Net Asset Value
attributable to the Units held by a Unitholder requesting the repurchase of his Units during the period from the dute
of the relevant repurchose notice until the relevant repurchase day will be borne by the Unitholder requesting the
repurchase. In addition, there may be situations in which Unitholders are unable to have their Units reperchased.

(B) No Cuarantee

An investment in the Scrics Trust is neither insurcd nor gearsnteed by any government, government agencies or
instrumentalities or any bank guarantes fund. Units of the Series Irust are not deposits or obligatdons of, or
guaranteed or endorsed by, any bank and the amount invested in Units may fluctuate up and/or down, Preservation
aof principal is not puaranteed An investment in the Scrics Trust involves curtuin investment risks, including the
possible loss of principal. There is no certainty that Unitholders will be able to recover the total value of their initial
invesiment Unitholders should be prepared to sustain losses up to the total amount invested.

{C) Exchange Rate Risk

The Units are denominated in USD and AUD. This presents certain risks relating to currency conversion if an
investor's financial activities are denominated principally in 2 currency or currency unit (including JPY) other than
USD and AUD. These include the risk that cxchange rates may significantly change (including changes due w
devaluation of USD and AUD or revaluation of the investor's currency) and the risk that authorities with jurisdiction
over USD and AUD or the investar's currency, as the case may be, may impose or modify exchange controls.

An increase in the value of the investor's currency against USD and AUD would decrease (a) the investor's curmency
equivalent value of the Met Asset Value and Net Asset Value per Unit and (b) the investor's eurrency equivalent
vlue of the distributions pavable (if any).

(D) Other Risk

During the period, the COVID-19 gutbreak was declared a pandemic by the Waorld Heakh Organization. The
situation is dynamic with various cities and countries around the world responding in different ways to address the
outbreak. The rapid development and fluidity of this situation precludes eny prediction as its ultimate impact, which
may have a continued adverse impact on economic and market conditions and trigger a period of global cconomic
slowdown.

The Manager and the Trustees are monitoring developments relating to COVID-19 and are coordinating is
operationel response based on exising business continuity plens and on guidance rom global health organisations,
relevant povernments, and peneral pandemic response best pracrices.

5. GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATION

Under the Series Trust's organizational documents, certain parties (including the Trustee and Manager) are
indemnified against certain liabilities that may arise out of performance of their duties to the Series Trust
Additionally, in the pormal course of business, the Series Trust enlers infe contracts that contain @ vanely of
indemnilication clauscs. The Serics Trust's maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown as this would
involve futhre claims that may be made against the Series Trust that have not vet occurred. However, the Series
Trust has net had priar claims or losses pursuant to these conracts.
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Target Setting at Matuority Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2020

6. INCOME TAX

The Series Trust is subjoct to the Cayman Islands laws in respect to its tax stams. Under current Cayman [slands
laws, there are no taxes or duty to be levied on profits, income, gains or appreciation, or any tax in the nature of
eslate duty or inheritance tax to any property comprised in or any income arising under the Scrics Trust, or the
unitholders thereof, in respect of any such properly or income. Authoritative guidance on accounting for and
disclosure of uncertainty in tax positions (FASB ASC 740), reqnires the Series Trust Trustee to determine whether 2
tas position of the Series Trust is more likely than not 1o be sustained upon examination, including resohrion of any
related appeals or litigation processes, bascd on the technicel merits of the position.

For tax positions mesting the more likely than not threshold, the tax amount recognized in the finenciul stiements is
reduced by the lergest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate
sctilement with the relevant taxing authority. As of May 31, 2020, there was no foreign tax expense and no
outstanding foreipn tax payable as disclosed in the Serics Trust's Statement of Operations and Statements of Assets
and Liabilities, respectively.

7. FEES AND EXPENSES

{A) Administrator Fees

The Series Trust has administrative agreements with the Administrator, for which the Administralor receives a
minimum monthly fee of 17S84,166. The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the raie
of (L04% per annum of the Net Asset Value,

The fees camed by the Administrator during the period ended May 31,2020 and outstanding fees payuble w the
Administrator as of May 31, 2020 have been disclosed in the Stetcment of Operations and the Statement of Assets
and Liabilitizs, respectively.

The Administrator also receives a transfer agent fee of 0.01% per annum of the Met Asset Velue, accrued on and
calculated 23 at each Valeation Dav and payable monthly in arrear. The transfer apeni fecs camed by the
Administrator during the period ended May 31, 2020 and outstanding transfer agemt fees payable to the
Administrator as of May 31, 2020 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets
and Liabilities, respectively.

{B) Custody Fees

The Series Trust has a custody agreement with the Custodian. The Custodian receives our of the asscis of the Series
Trust a custodian fee of 0.015% per annum of the Net Asset Value, accrued on and calculated as at each Valuation
Day and payeblc monthly in arcars. The fews curned by the Custodian during the period ended May 31, 2020 and
outstanding fees payable to the Custodian as of May 31, 2020 have been disclosed in the Stalement of Operations
and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

(C) Trustee Fees

The Trustee receives a one-off fee of USS7,500 and a fixed annual fee of USS15,000. The fees camed by the Trustee
during the period ended May 31, 2020 and outstanding fees pavable to the Trustee as of May 31, 2020 have been
disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assers and Liabilities, respectively.

(D) Management Fees

The Manapger receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a one-off fee of USSR0,000 on the Initial Clasing Date, a
fee at the rate of 0L09% per annum of the Fee Amount, subject to a minimum fee of US$125,000 per annum, accrued
on and calculated as at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrears, and a one-off fee of USE73,000 upon the
termination of the Series Trust The fees earned by the Manager during the period ended May 31, 2020 and
outstanding fees payable to the Manager as of May 31, 2020 have been dizelozed in the Statement of Operations and
the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Motes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2020

7. FEES AND EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

(E) Distributor Fees

The Distributor will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee of 0.53% por annum of the Fee
Amount of cach class of Units, calculated and aecrued daily and pavable monthly in arrears. The fees camed by the
Distributor during the period ended May 31, 2020 and outstanding fees puyable to the Distributor as of May 31,
2020 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilitics, respectively.

(F) Agent Company Fees

The Agent Company will be entitled 1o receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee of 0.01% per annum of the
Fee Amount of cach class of Units, culeulated and accrued daily and payveble monthly in arrears. The fees eamed by
the Apent during the period ended May 31, 2020 and outstanding fecs payable to the Agent Company as of May 31,
2020 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Smtement of Assets and Liabilities, respoetively,

(G) Other Fees

The Series Trust may bear other expenses related to its operations including but not limited to: governmental fees;
brokerage fees and comumissions and other portfolio transaction expenses; costs of barrowing money, including
interest expenses; extruondinary expenses, including costs of litigation and indemnification expenses; and audit fees.

(H) Establishment Costs and On-Going Reserves

As per the Offering Memornndum end Appendix, the Series Trust incurred an expense reserve inclusive of five
years of anticipated expenses in year | of the Serics Trust’s operations for the calculation of the NAV in accordance
with the Offering Memorandum and Appendix. The expense reserve is compased of contractual fees the Fund will
pay over ils life. Management recogniees that this is a departure from US GAAP therefore expenses have been
adjusted through the Stalement of Operations in the current period to reflect only those costs attributable to the
current period in these financial statements.

The Series Trust incurred organizational and set up costs. For the calculation of the NAY in accordance with the
Olering Memorandum and Appendix these costs are amortized by the Series Trust over the first three accounting
periods of its life. Amortization of such expenses over this time period is a divergence from US GAAP, and is
therefore for these financial statements the amounts have been expensed through the Statement of Operations in full.

A reconciliation for the difference between the net asset value of the Series Trust as per the financial statements
(*F5 NAV™), which is caleulated in accordance with US GAAP, and the NAV calculated in accordance with the
Offering Memorzndum and Appendix (the “Trading NAV™) is shown below.

2020
Trading NAV 97,260,914
Expense reserve 264,668
FS NAV 97,525,584

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Manzger is responsible under the Master Trust Deed for the management of the investment and re-investment of
the assets of the Series Trust, the exercise of the power to borrow money in respect of the Series Trust and for the
izsue and repurchase of units of the Series Trust.

The Trustee is responsible under the master trust deed for the administration of each Series Trust and for keeping the
register of unitholders.
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2020

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The Manager and the Trustee are entitled to receive fees and expenses out of the assets of the Series Trust. Details of
these fiees are set out in Mote 7 to the financial statements.

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Trustee and Manager have evaluated all subsequent transactions and cvents through November 4, 2020, the date
on which twese Qnancial statements were available to be issued.

From June 1, 2020 through to the date of this report, there were no subscriptions, and thure were redemptions of
USD 5,344,180 snd USD 7,297,402 from Class AUD and Class USD, respectively.

On March 11, 2020, the World llzalth Organization declared the coronavirus discase 2019 (“"COVID -197) a
pandemic, Uncertainty remaine around (i) the length of the disruption, and (i) the impact of the COVID=1% on
global markets. The Trustee and the Manager consider the effects of the pandemic since the reporting date to be a
non-adjusting post balance shect cvent. The value of assets held in the Series Trust has not been adjusted due to the
coronavirus situation and Management note no significant performance issues for the Series Trust us a result of the
pendemic. Management has made an assessment of the impact of recent market events on the fund’s ahility to
continuc 2s a going concemn and concluded that the going concern assumption remains appropriate.

The Trustee and the Manager are monitoring developments relating to coronavirus and are coordinating their
operational responsc bascd on existing business comtinuity plans and on guidance from the World Health
Organization, relevant governments, and general pandemic response practices.
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2021
65,340,421 7,312,900
2,310,607 258,603
63,029,815 7,054,297
5,149,028.001
1,532,022.619
10.06 1,126
10.14 816
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2021
750,000 8,394
75
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10 EQ 10 EQ

2021 10 EQ 5,000
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2021 17
11

358,058,838.04
350,554,083.76
145,809,597.26
58,762,610,562
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10 EQ

2020 12 31
2020 2019

4,033,538 451,434 2,133,979 238,835

385,018 43,091 442,373 49,510

4,418,556 494,525 2,576,352 288,345

(2,000) (224)

4,416,556 494,301 2,576,352 288,345

4,416,556 494,301 2,576,352 288,345

11 750,000 83,940 750,000 83,940

3,666,556 410, 361 1,826,352 204,405

4,416,556 494,301 2,576,352 288,345

2021 18
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10 EQ
2020 12 31
2020 2019
2,327,511 260,495 2,940,188 329,066
2,327,511 260,495 2,940,188 329,066
(727,718) (81,446) (974,634)  (109,081)
155,759 17,433 (256,294) (28,684)
1,755,552 196,481 1,709,260 191,300
86,735 9,707 6 1
(2,083) (233) (7,961) (891)
84,652 9,474 (7,955) (890)
1,840,204 205,956 1,701,305 190,410
1,840,204 205,956 1,701,305 190,410
1,840,204 205,956 1,701,305 190,410
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10 EQ

2020 12 31

2019 750,000 83,940 125,047 13,995 875,047 97,935
1,701,305 190,410 1,701,305 190,410
1,701,305 190,410 1,701,305 190,410

2019 12 31 750,000 83,940 1,826,352 204,405 2,576,352 288,345

2020 750,000 83,940 1,826,352 204,405 2,576,352 288,345
1,840,204 205,956 1,840,204 205,956
1,840,204 205,956 1,840,204 205,956

2020 12 31 750,000 83,940 3,666,556 410,361 4,416,556 494,301
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10 EQ

2020 12 31
2020 2019

12 (55,272) (6,186) 341,424 38,212

(55,272) (6,186) 341,424 38,212

6 1

6 1

(2,083) (233) (7,961) (891)

(2,083) (233) (7,961) (891)

(57,355) (6,419) 333,469 37,322

442,373 49,510 108,904 12,189

385,018 43,091 442,373 49,510

385,018 43,091 442,373 49,510

385,018 43,001 442,373 49,510
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2020 2019

(155,759) 256,294

2020 2019 12 31 10 EQ

10 EQ 1Q EQ
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2020 2019
13 6
86,722
86,735 6
2020 2019
(2,083) (7,961)
(2,083) (7,961)
2020 2019
86,735 6
(2,083) (7,961)
84,652 (7,955)
2035
2020 2019
36,357 113,844
195,877 263,942
3,792,713 1,749,603
6,590 6,590
3,995,180 2,020,135
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2020 2019
2,000
12 31 2,000
2020 2020 2019 2019
232,234 377,786
3,792,713 1,749,603
385,018 442,373
4,409,965 2,569,762
(2,000)
(2,000)
2020 2019
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
750,000 750,000 750,000
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12
2020 2019
1,840,204 1,701,305
2,083 7,955
1,842,287 1,709,260
(1,743,800) 642,044
2,000 (2,009,880)
(155,759)
(55,272) 341,424
2020 2020 2020
12 31
442,373 (36,572) (20,783) 385,018
442,373 (36,572) (20,783) 385,018
13
102 33.1
14
1Q EQ
2020 12 31
15
2021 29 2020 12 31 2,500,000
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Balance sheet
As at 31 December 2020

2020 2019
Mote usDs usos
Current assets
Debtors and prepayments B 4,033,538 2133979
Cash at bank and in hand 385,018 442 373
4,418,556 2,576,352
Creditors: amounts falling due
within cne year 8 (2,000} -
Net current assets 4.416,556 2,576,352
Met Assets 4,416,556 2,576,352
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 11 750,000 750,000
Retained earnings 3,666,556 1,826,352
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 4,416,556 2,576,352

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form part of the financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 6 to 18 were approved by the Board of Directors on 18  June 2021 and
signed an its behalf by:

Gary Carr David Rourke

Page 7
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Total profit and total comprehensive income for the year
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2018

Motes uspDs uUsDs

Tumover 2,327,511 2,940 188
Gross profit 2,327,511 2,940,188
Administrative expenses (727,718) (G974 634)
Cther operating gains/{losses) 155,759 {256,294
Operating profit 4 1,755,552 1,709,260
Interest receivable and similar income Ba 86,735 B
Interest payable and similar charges ] (2,083) {7 .861)
Met interest receivableldpayable) Bc 84.652 (7, 955)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,840,204 1,701,305
Tax on profit on ordinary activities [} - -
Profit for the financial year 1,840,204 1,701,305
Cther comprehensive inceme for the year . -
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,840,204 1,701,305

All results derive from continuing operations.

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form part of the financial statements.

Page 6
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Called up Retained

share capital earnings Yot Equiey

uUsD$ usD$ usD$

Balance as at 1 January 2019 750,000 125,047 B75,047
Profit for the year - 1,701,305 1,701,305
Total comprehensive income for the year = 1,701,305 1.701.305
Balance as at 31 December 2019 750,000 1,826,352 2,576,352
Balance as at 1 January 2020 750,000 1,826,352 2,576,352
Profit for the year - 1,840,204 1,840,204
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,840,204 1,840,204
Balance as at 31 December 2020 750,000 3,666,556 4,416,556

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form part of the financial statements.

Page 8
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Mote 2020 2018
UsD$ UsSDS
Net cash from operating activities 12 {55,272) 341,424
Taxation paid - -
Net cash generated from operating activities {55,272) 341,424
Cash flow from investing activities
Interest received - &
Net cash used in invﬂsting activities - 6
Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid (2,083) (7.961)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,083) {7,961)
Met (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (57,355) 333,469
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 442,373 108 204
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year: 385,018 442,373
Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Cash at bank and in hand 335,018 442 373
Total of cash and cash equivalents 385,018 442,373

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form part of the financial statements.
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

MNotes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

1

Summary of compliance

The individual financdial statements of |Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited (the "Company") hawve
been prepared in compliance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting
Standard 102, “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of
Ireland” (*FRS 1027).

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the recognition of certain financial assats and iabilties measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company accounting
policies.

{(b) Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Group. Control is the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Where the Group owns less
than 50% of the voting powers of an entity but controls the entity by virtue of an agreement with cther
investors which give it contral of the financial and operating policies of the entity it accounts for that
enfity as a subsidiary.

Any subsidiary undertakings or associates sold or acguired during the 1 January are included up to, or
from, the date of change of control or change of significant influence respectively.

Vilhere control of a subsidiary is lost, the gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, The cumulative amounts of any exchange differences on translation, recognised in eguity,
are not included in the gain or loss on disposal and are transferred to retained eamings. The gain or
loss also includes amounts included in other comprehensive income that are required to be reclassified
to profit or loss but excludes those amounts that are not required to be reclassified.

Allintra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
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Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2

Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued)

(¢} Guoing Concern

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future, and have adopted the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the financial statem ents.

Although the company revenue reduced year on yearin 2020, the cost base was managed
appropriately to maintain profitability. In addition to this the Company continued to be cash generative,
while maintaining the Financial Position of the Company,

The Company is part of the 1Q-EQ Group (the “Group”) and overall debt funding is managed at a Group
level, The Group has a record of generating cash from operations, at the same time significant
investment is made to contribute to the long term growth and development of the Group. The majority of
the Group's revenues are recurring in nature and there are significant non-underlying costs which
mainly relate to the acquisition, integration and project development costs, all of which are focused on
the long term growth of the Group. The finance structure has been designed to accommodate this
growth by, rather than repayment, capitalising the interest on the convertible preferred equity certificates
{("*CPECs") allowing reinvestment into the Group.

The Group has demonstrated a solid resilience of the business model in 2020 with revenue and
EBITDA up on 2019 despite the Covid-19 Pandemic. The Group has proven its ability to service
customers and win new customers with its employees working from home.

The Directors have undertaken a review of the Company’s trading forecast for the coming 12 months
from the date of signing of these financial statements, which shows that the Company is expected to
remain profitable and continue to be cash generative. Therefore, the Directors believe that the
Company will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

{d) Foreign currency

{1 Functiona! and presentational currency
The Company’s functional and presentational currency is United States Dollars (3).

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the underlying entities using
the spot exchange rate at the dates of the transactions.

At each period end, foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. MNon-
maonetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
fransaction and non-monetary tems measured at fair value are measured using the exchange rate
when fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the seftlement of transactions and from the
translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement within *Foreign exchange (loss)igain.’
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued)
(a) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable in respect of services
rendered from the provision of administration, corporate management, trustee services together with
ancillary services, net of any discounts and rebates allowed by the Company, and company value
added taxes. Revenue is recognised on an accruals basis, with deferral of any cash received in
advance. Deferred income is released to the income statement over the period to which it relates.
Other revenue items relate to:

{1} Interest income
Interest income is recognised on an accruals basis.

{ii} Dividend income
Dirvidend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

(i) Management recharge incomefexpense
Management recharges are calculated based on the services provided and costs incurred by/from
subsidiaries and other group companies during the year.

(fv) Management fees

Management fees are received from the investment funds under management as compensation for the
management senvices provided by the Company. Management fees vary from 0.0175% per quarter to
0.2% per quarter of either the product of the inifial unit price and the number of units in issue at a
Valuation Day coinciding with a Dealing Day, or of the Net Asset VValue (all as defined in the Offering
Memoranda andfor Appendices of the relevant investment funds) for all funds. In some cases, these
management fees are subject to a minimum and/or an additional fixed fee also exists.

(v) Consultancy fees
Consultancy fees are received from the investment funds under management for sendces provided by

the Company relating to the set up or termination of an investment fund or sub fund. Such fees are
determined on a case-by-case basis.

() Administrative expenses

Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis and included within operating expenditure,

{g) Provisions and contingencies

Provdsions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result

of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount of the cbligation can be estimated reliably.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued)
(h) Impairment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date, non-financial assets not camed at fair value are assessed to determine
whether there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. If there is such an indication, the
recoverable amount of the asset is compared to the carrying amount of the asset.

The recoverable amount of the asset is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in uss.
Valuein use is defined as the present value of the future pre-tax and interest cash flows obtainable as a
result of the assets continued use, The pre-tax and interest cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax
discount rate that represents the current market risk-free rate and the risks inherent in the asset.

If the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to be lower than the carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impaiment loss is recognised in the income
statement, unless the asset has been revalued when the amounts is recognised in other
comprehensive income to the extent of any previously recognised revaluation. Thereafter any excess is
recognised in the income statement.

If an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount but only to the extent that the revised carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement.

(i) Financial instruments

The Company has chosen to adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.

i} Financial assets

Basic financial assets, including amounts due from group undertakings are initially recognised at the
transaction price. Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire or are setfled, or (b) substantially all the risks and rewards of the awnership of the
asset are transferred to another party or (c) despite having retained some significant risks and rewards
of ownership, control of the asset has been transferred to another party who has the practical ability to
unilaterally sell the assat to an unrelated third party without imposing addtional restrictions.

(i} Financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including am cunts owed to group undertakings and other payables are initially
recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the
debt instrument is measured at the present value of the future payments (net of directly attributable
issue costs) discounted at the market rate of interest. |ssue costs are recognised in the income
statement over the term of the debt on an effective interest rate basis.

Debt instruments are subsequently camed at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Fimancial liabilifies are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the contractual
obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued)
{j) Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts presented on the financial statements
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognition amounts and there is an intention to
seftle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly.

(k) Share capital

Crdinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(I} Distributions to equity holders

Dividends and other distributions to the Company's shareholders are recognised as a liability in the
financial statements in the period in which the dvidends and other distributions are approved by the
stakeholders. These amounts are recognised in the statement of changes in equity.

(m) Related party transactions

The Company discloses transactions with related parties which are not wholly owned within the same
group. Where appropriate, transactions of a similar nature are aggregated unless, in the opinion of the
directors, separate disclosure is necessary to understand the effect of the transactions on the Company
financial statements

Critical accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Key accounting estimates and assumptions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future, The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant nsk of causing a material adjustment to the carmrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(i1 Prowisions for bad debfs and Accrued income

The Company recognises trade debtors and accrued income at recoverable amounts, The recoverable
amount of frade debtors and accrued income is assessed on an individual basis using the judgement of
management to assess the recoverable value of these assets and quantify the level of provisioning
which takes into account an assessment of the customer's current and historic financial position, age
profile of work in progress and outstanding debt and assessment of historical recovery rates,
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Operating profit is stated after (crediting)/charging:
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2020 2018
UsSD$ UsDS
Foreign exchange {gainsiflosses [155,759) 256,204

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 the audit fee of the Company was paid by I1Q EQ
Group Management (Isle of Man) Limited, a related entity under common control.

5 Employees and Directors

Key management compensation

Key management includes the directors and members of senior management. The compensation is
bome by other companies related by commoen control, primarily 1Q EQ Bermuda Limited and 10 EQ
Management (Jersey) Limited and is therefore not disclosed in these financial statements.

6 Met interest expanse

(a) Interest received and similar income

2020 2018
UsSD$ UsSDS
Bank interest receivable 13 &
Interest on intercompany loan 86,722 -
Total interest receivable and similar income 86,735 5]
{b) Interast payable and similar charges
2020 2018
UsSD$ USDS
Other (2,083) (7,961
Total interest expense on financial liabilities {2,083) (7.961)
(c) Net interest expense
2020 2018
uspD$ UsSDE
Interest receivable and similar income 86,735 5]
Interest payable and similar charges {2,083) (7.951)
Met interest expense 84,652 {7.955)
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7 Income Tax
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Under current Bermuda laws, the Company is not required to pay any taxes in Bermuda on either
income of capital gains. The Company has received an undertaking from the Minister of Finance in
Bermuda exempting it from any such taxes at least until the year 2035.

8 Debtors and prepayments 2020 2019
UsSD$ UsDs
Amounts due within one year
Trade debtors 36,357 113,844
Accrued income 195877 263,942
Amounts owed by related parties 3792713 1,749,603
Prepayments 6,580 6,580
3,995,180 2,020,135
The amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fived date of
repayment and are repayable on demand.
9 Creditors 2020 2019
usDs UsSDs
Amounts due within one year
Amounts owed to related parties 2,000 -
At 31 December 2,000 -

The amounts due to group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment

and are repayable on demand.
10 Financial instruments

The company has the following financial instruments:

2020 2020 2019 2019
UsD% UsDs UsD% UsSDS
Financial assets that are measured at amortised
cost
Trade debtors 232,234 377 786
Cther receivables 3,792,713 1,749,603
Cash and cash equivalents 385,018 442373
4,408 965 2,569,752
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10 Financial instruments (continuead)

2020 2020 2019 2019
UsDs UsSDS UsD$ UsD3

Financial habilities measured at amortised cost

Amounts cwed to related
parties (2,000) -
{2,000} "
11 Share capital 2020 2019
UusD% LSDS
Authorised
1.000,000 common shares of USDS1 each 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid
750.000 common shares of USD31 each 750,000 750,000

The Company has one class of share capital which camies no night to fixed income.

12 Motes to the statement of cash flows

Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash from operating activities

2020 2019
usD% UsDs
Profit for the financial year 1,840,204 1,701,305
Adjustments for:
Interest expense 2,083 7.955
Operating profit 1,842,287 1,708,260
Working capital movements:
{Increase WDecrease in debtors and prepaym ents (1,743, 800) 642 044
Increase /{Decrease) in pavables 2000 (2,008 880)
Foreign exchange movement (155.759) -
Cash flow from operating activities (55.272) 341,424
Analysis of change in net funds
Cash at bank and in hand
At Cashflows Exchange As at
01/01/2020 2020 movements 311272020
Cash at bank 442 373 (36.572) (20,783) 85018
Total 442,373 (36,572) (20,783) 385,018
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13 Related party transactions

Other than note 5, transactions with other wholly cwned subsidiaries related by common control are not
disclosed as the Company has taken advantage of the exemption in section 33.1A of FRS 102,

14 Controlling parties

Faollowing the restructure of the group, the Company’s immediate parent undertaking is 1Q EQ Group
Holdco (Jersey) Limited (formerly known as Moore Group Limited), a company incorporated in Jersey.

As at 31 December 2020, the ultimate holding company into which the results are consclidated is
Saphilux Sarl (a Luxembourg entity).

15 Events after the end of the reporting period

On 29 March 2021 the board resolved to approve the payment of a final dividend for the year ending 31
December 2020 of LSDS52 500,000,
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Intertrust SPV Cayman Limited

2021 500,300 5,599

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
2021 10 1,000 1,130 3,920
2021 836 1,600
2021 875 5,000
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03 (the “ Series Trust”), a series
trust of Ortu Curva Trust which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the schedule of
investments as at May 31, 2021, the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Series Trust as at May 31, 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“US GAAP").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“I1SAS’). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “ Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Satements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevent to
our audit of the financial statementsin the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The Series Trust may tranglate these financial statements and our auditors report from English to Japanese. We
have not been engaged to perform any procedures over the trandation. In the event of any inconsistencies
between the English and the Japanese versions of the financial statements and our audiors report, the English
version shall prevail.

Responsihilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Satements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with US GAAP, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enabl e the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless managemants either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Satements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Series Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

KPMG
November 1, 2021
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Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements of 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited (the ‘ company’):
give atrue and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of its profit for the
year then ended; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland; and
have been prepared in accordance Bermudian Companies Act 1981.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:
the statement of comprehensive income;
the balance sheet;
the statement of changes in equity;
the cash flow statement; and
the related notes 1 to 14.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “ The Financial Reporting Standard
applicablein the UK and Republic of Ireland.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC’'s) Ethical Standard,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financia statements, we have concluded that the directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statementsis appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern for aperiod of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsihilities and the responsihilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Directors report, other than the financia
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained
within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic aternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financia statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's
website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below.

We considered the nature of the company’s industry and its control environment, and reviewed the company’s
documentation of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. We
also enquired of management about their own identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the company operates in, and identified
the key laws and regulations that:
had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financia statements.
These included Bermudian Companies Act 1981; and
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do not have adirect effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the
company’s ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty.

We discussed among the audit engagement team regarding the opportunities and incentives that may exist within
the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the financia statements.

As aresult of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud in the following areas, and our
specific procedures performed to address them are described below:
The vauation of accrued income requires significant management judgement and therefore there is
potential for management bias in revenue recognition. In response, our testing undertaken, on a sample
basis, compared management’s estimate of recoverable values to amounts billed and recovered post year-
end, challenged management on recoverable values by assessing historic billing and recovery rates based
on our understanding of the specific customer circumstances.

In common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the
risk of management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we tested
the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making
accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias;, and evaluated the business rationale of any significant
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:
reviewing financia statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with
provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;
performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks
of material misstatement due to fraud;
enquiring of management and legal counsel concerning actual and potentia litigation and claims, and
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations; and
reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermudian
Companies Act 1981. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's directors those
matters we are required to (or have expressly agreed in this letter to) state to them in an independent auditor's
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the company and the company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for our reports, or
for the opinions we have formed.

Deloitte LLP
St Peter Port
21 June 2021
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03 (the “ Series Trust”), a series
trust of Ortu Curva Trust which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the schedule of
investments as at May 31, 2020, the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the period
from March 31, 2020 to May 31, 2020, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Series Trust as at May 31, 2020, and its financia performance and its cash flows for the period from March
31, 2020 to May 31, 2020 in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“I1SAS’). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “ Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Satements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevent to
our audit of the financial statementsin the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The Series Trust may translate these financial statements and our auditors report from English to Japanese. We
have not been engaged to perform any procedures over the trandation. In the event of any inconsistencies
between the English and the Japanese versions of the financial statements and our audiors report, the English
version shall prevail.

Responsihilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Satements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financia statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless managemants either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Satements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
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and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Series Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

KPMG
November 4, 2020
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